ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOQURCES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 13, 2005
1: 09 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Jay Ranras, Co-Chair
Represent ati ve Ral ph Samuel s, Co-Chair
Representative JimElKkins
Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Gabriell e LeDoux
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Kurt O son
Representative Harry Crawford
Representative Mary Kapsner

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 252

"An Act providing for a sport fishing facility surcharge on
sport fishing Ilicenses; providing for the construction and
renovation of state sport fishing facilities and for other
projects beneficial to the sport fish resources of the state as
a public enterprise; and authorizing the issuance of revenue
bonds to finance those projects.”

- MOVED HB 252 OQUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 252

SHORT TI TLE: SPORT FI SHI NG FACI LI TY REVENUE BONDS
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) REPRESENTATI VE HOLM

04/ 05/ 05 (H) READ THE FIRST TI ME - REFERRALS
04/ 05/ 05 (H) FSH, RES, FIN

04/ 13/ 05 (H) FSH AT 8:30 AM CAP| TOL 124

04/ 13/ 05 (H) RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE JI M HOLM
Al aska State Legislature

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -1- April 13, 2005



Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 252 as sponsor.

DOUG VI NCENT- LANG, Assi stant Director

Di vision of Sport Fish

Al aska Departnment of Fish & Gane ( ADF&G

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions on HB 252.

GORDON GARCI A, Project Mnager

Di vision of Sport Fish

Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions on HB 252.

Bl LL BUBBEL

Tanana Val | ey Convention and Visitor's Bureau,
Hat chery conmittee

Trout Unlimted

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 252.

A. L. BUKI WRI GHT, General Manager

Aur ora Ener gy

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 252.

Rl CKY GEASE, Executive Director

Kenai River Sport Fishing Association

Sol dot na, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 252.

JENNI FER YUHAS, Executive Director

Al aska Qutdoor Counci

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of the usage fee, but
not the bonding portion of HB 252.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

COCHAIR RALPH SAMUJELS called the House Resources Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:09:20 PM Representatives
LeDoux, Sanuels, Elkins, Seaton, Gatto, and Ranras were present
at the call to order.

HB 252- SPORT FI SHI NG FACI LI TY REVENUE BONDS

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 2- April 13, 2005



CO CHAI R SAMUELS announced that the only order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 252 "An Act providing for a sport fishing
facility surcharge on sport fishing licenses; providing for the
construction and renovation of state sport fishing facilities
and for other projects beneficial to the sport fish resources of
the state as a public enterprise; and authorizing the issuance
of revenue bonds to finance those projects.”

REPRESENTATI VE JIM HOLM Al aska State Legislature, said HB 252
was hatched when Senator Ted Stevens obtained $10 million in
federal funds for a hatchery in Fairbanks. He said HB 252 adds
fees to sport fishing licenses to rebuild a hatchery in Fort
Ri chardson and to build a new hatchery in Fairbanks. Bonds wl|
be sold to build the projects and reinbursed by the fund. He
noted that the total will be $69 nmillion, with $45 mllion going

to the Fort Richardson hatchery. If it isn't rebuilt, he said,
it will be torn down because it is over 30 years old and is
runni ng out of warm water. There will be $15 million for the
Fai rbanks hatchery, $3.5 million in reserves, and $5.5 mllion
for other fish projects including the Crystal Lake hatchery in
Pet er sbur g, t he Nor t hern Sout heast Regi onal Aquacul ture

Associ ation hatcheries in Sitka and Hai nes, and $160,000 for a
new hat chery in Skagway.

1:13: 32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM noted that the license is currently $15, and
it will go to $23.50 under HB 252. Once the bonds are paid for,
the increase wll be reduced. Al aska's fee will not be high
conpared to sport fishing licenses for other states, and we wil|l
have state of the art facilities, he concl uded.

1:15: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said he wants to hear fromsport anglers.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM said npbst are supportive, but sone thought
it was a greater increase than expected.

1:17: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM sai d about 80 percent of the noney will cone
from non-resident anglers.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if nore non-resident fishing
| i censes are sold.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 3- April 13, 2005



1:18: 03 PM

DOUG VI NCENT- LANG, Assistant Director, Division of Sport Fish,
Al aska Department of Fish & Gane (ADF&S), said the division
sells nore sport fishing licenses to non-residents. The
surcharge would depend on the license tinme-period, he said.
Many sport groups have supported HB 252 because the hatchery
production provi des econoni c benefits and fishing opportunities.
Kids start their fishing experiences on stocked |akes, he said.
This is how people get interested in fishing. The hatchery fish
relieves pressure on wild stocks, "and | can't tell you how
inportant that 1is,” he said. The hatchery fish provide
di version fisheries, because the others are fully allocated. He
concluded that there is great value to anglers in taking the
pressure off wild stocks |ike rainbow trout.

1: 20: 56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked the survival rate of catch and
rel ease rai nbow trout.

MR. VI NCENT- LANG said nmanagenent for wld stock rainbow trout
encourages non-lethal, non-bait fisheries, and there is less
than five percent nortality.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked how far hatchery fish <can be
transport ed.

MR. VI NCENT- LANG said ADF&G is very good at hatchery transport.
Fish go by tanker truck between Anchorage and Fairbanks, which
is 400 mles. He said 21 |lakes in Kodiak are stocked from Fort
Ri chardson

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked how hatcheries are | ocated.

1:23:21 PM

MR. VI NCENT-LANG said there are different production needs in
Fai r banks and Anchor age. In Fairbanks the state has access to
hot water from the Aurora power plant, which reduces operational
costs. The Anchorage facility nmeets that region's needs.
Recreational fishing needs are not conducive to private non-
profit ventures, he noted.

1:24.43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked about support from sport groups.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- April 13, 2005



CO CHAI R SAMIJELS said that will be in public testinony.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if the Southeast Al aska hatchery
enhancenents are part of a |ong-range plan.

MR. VI NCENT- LANG sai d ADF&G spends $750, 000 through private non-
profit hatcheries in Southeast. There is also $193,000 for the
Crystal Lake Hatchery, which will be gone at the end of the
year, he said. The projects in the bill are the things that
were needed and were in ADF&G s plans. Some needs are addressed
through the hatchery prograns. In Kodiak there is a stocking
plan that will be addressed through the hatchery in Anchorage.

1:27.22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM said the conmttee has letters of support.
CO-CHAIR RAMRAS said he supports the hatchery progranms in
Fai rbanks and Anchorage, but he asked why the state needs a

brand new $45 nillion hatchery in Anchorage.

MR, VI NCENT-LANG said the hatchery in Anchorage is old and

crunbling, and it is losing its hot water. The well field at
the old hatchery is nmaxed out, he said, and a new design would
use water nore efficiently. The demand over the next twenty

years requires the new re-circul ation technol ogy, he said. The
producti on needs are greater in Anchorage than Fairbanks.

CO CHAIR RAMRAS said there is anple surplus waste heat according

to Jim Posey of Anchorage Minicipal Light And Power. In
Fai rbanks, there is noney earmarked for a mle-long pipe from
the Aurora Energy power plant for free waste hot water. He said

he supports the hatchery programbut it needs an airing.

1:34:02 PM

CO- CHAI R RAMRAS noted that the Fairbanks pipe will cost about $2
mllion. The Anchorage power plant has offered the same option
to the hatchery in Anchorage, and it wll cost $1.5 to $3
mllion. "Are we being fiscally conservative?" he asked.

1:35:19 PM

CO CHAIR RAMRAS asked how much the Anchorage hatchery can be
upgraded for $15 nmllion. There is $350 nillion in deferred

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- April 13, 2005



mai nt enance in schools, he said, and he wants a justification
for a $45 m|lion new hatchery.

GORDON GARCI A, Project Mnager, Division of Sport Fish, Al aska
Department of Fish & Gane, said ADF&G | ooked at a pipeline and
estimated a construction cost of $4 to $6 nmillion. The hatchery
woul d also need to get the water to the power plant, and water

is limted in that area. He noted that Anchorage Mini ci pal
Light and Power has already allocated nost of its excess heat,
so the state would have to conpete with other entities. The
right of way for the pipeline, he explained, would be "literally
mllions of dollars.”

1:39:54 PM

CO CHAI R RAMRAS said his dialogue with Jim Posey was casual, and
he asked the departnent to revisit it. He asked M. Garcia how
cl ose ADF&G could get to its hatchery target with $15 million

MR. GARCI A said he would need to do research, but it would be a
band-aid to barely keep up with existing demand. "We're losing
ground, even as we speak," he said. Wth the loss of the hot
water, the cost of keeping the current hatchery running woul d be
prohi bitive. Recirculation is much nore efficient, and it wll
reduce conpetition for water.

1.41.53 PM
CO CHAIR RAMRAS said he still disagrees with sonme of the issues.
1:42: 21 PM

BILL BUBBEL, Tanana Valley Convention and Visitor's Bureau,
Trout Unlimted, and Chena R verfront Comm ssion, said he has
foll owed the hatchery process from the beginning. He noted that
a fishing license is a user fee, not a tax. It is resource
enhancenent for the people using the resource, he said, so there
is little opposition. He reported that Al aska is bel ow average
for non-resident sport fishing fees. Having catchable fish is a
huge marketing tool for tourism and it wll increase and
sustain visitation in the area. He added that |ocals are not
going to mnd spending the extra $8. He said, "Canada is about
fished out; their stocking programis a little bit behind, so
Alaska is still a dream that [visitors] have, and we need to
fulfill that." He clained the Interior has different hatchery
needs, and transporting from Anchorage has caused high fish
nortality. Pressure on |akes is increasing because of increased

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- April 13, 2005



mlitary in the area. "We need to grow nore fish," he added.
It wll take time to build the hatchery, and |akes wll get
depl eted soon, he warned. Senator Stevens has given about $8
mllion toward the hatchery, he highlighted, and about $1
mllion has been spent on well drilling and engineering. It's a
huge comunity project, involving kids, the wuniversity, and
touri sm advocat es, he concl uded.

1:47:45 PM

CO CHAI R RAMRAS said he agrees with M. Bubbel on the inportance
of getting kids involved in science, biology and the outdoors.

A. L. BUKI WRIGHT, GCeneral Manager, Aurora Energy, said the
conpany's power plant is on the Chena River and has heat that it
doesn't use. The hatchery can use it if located within 1 to 1.5
mles of the plant. In the process of nmking electricity the
pl ant needs Chena River water to cool hot equipnent, he said.
The warm water is now channel ed back into the river and wast ed.

1:52: 28 PM
MR WRIGHT said the water is warm enough to raise fish, but not

to heat the building. So Aurora Energy will sell its hotter
"district heat" for heating the buildings, he said.

1: 54: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked about Aurora Energy's commtnent for
the life of the project.

MR. WRI GHT said the conmpany has every intention of being there,
and will sign a long-term contract to provide the heat for "a
| ot [ onger” than 15 years.

1: 55: 55 PM

CO CHAIR RAMRAS said without the benefit of the waste heat, the
annual cost of the hatchery would be $700,000 nore. He hopes
there will be natural gas in the future. He thanked M. Wight.
1:58: 10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked about gas coming to Fairbanks, and if
Aurora Energy will be forced to abandon the coal plant.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- April 13, 2005



MR. VWRI GHT said gas may or may not nean that the coal plant wl|
shut down. Gas might be nore expensive than coal, he said. It
is unlikely that the power plant would shut down, and even if it
is converted to gas it would continue to have waste heat.

2:01:09 PM
RI CKY GEASE, Executive Director, Kenai River Sport Fishing

Associ ation, Soldotna, said the association supports the bill
The new facilities are inportant for the future of sport

fishing, he said. Over 60,000 new anglers will be comng to the
region in the next decade, and it is tinme to plan now. The user
fees will not turn anyone away, especially since the noney wll
be used for resource enhancenent, he said. Lake hatchery

prograns are inportant for diversifying angling activities and
reducing fishing on the extrenely popul ar Kenai River.

2:04: 41 PM

JENNI FER YUHAS, Executive Director, Alaska Qutdoor Counci
(ACC), said the AOC supports the usage fee, but not the use of
bondi ng.

2:05:30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the bonding goes forward and the
revenue stream is identified as its user fee on recreational
| i censes, "are you opposing that?"

M5. YUHAS reiteriated that the AOCC is opposed to funding with
bonds.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked why.
M5. YUHAS sai d because the del egates voted against it.

CO CHAI R RAMRAS said the bonding nechanism can be dealt with in
t he House Finance Committee.

CO CHAIR RAMRAS noved to report HB 252 out of committee wth
i ndi vi dual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal notes.
There being no objection, HB 252 was passed out of the House
Resources Standing Committee.

ADJ OQURNMVENT

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- April 13, 2005



There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Resources Standing Conmmittee neeting was adjourned at 2:08:38
PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 9- April 13, 2005



